ARIZONA REGION Of USA VOLLEYBALL

POLICIES MANUAL

February, 2024

Arizona Region of USA Volleyball Policies Manual

Adopted: Revised:	August 2011 Oct 2012, Oct 2013, Jan 2014, Sept 2015, Sept 2016, April 2018, Nov 2018, Oct 2019, Aug 2021, Mar 2022, Sept 2023, February 2024		
	TABLE OF CONTENTS		
Section:	Title:	Page:	
Chapter I	Disciplinary Action and Appeals (Due Process)	4	
Chapter II	Region Related Policies A. Refund Policy	10 12 12 13 13	
Chapter III	Tournament Related Policies A. Facilities B. Pack It In/Pack It Out Policy C. Food & Beverages in Gym – 13 Point Penalty D. Roster Requirements E. Tournament Check-In Policy F. Teams Playing with an Unregistered Player G. Player Age and Identity H. Late Team Penalties I. Late Withdrawal or No Show at a Tournament J. Reduced Number of Players K. Weather Related Tournament Attendance L. Concussion Policy M. Team Referee Assignments N. Electronics Policy O. Deficient Scorer Policy P. Purple Card Sanction Policy Q. Music and Artificial Noisemakers Policy R. Service Animals S. Weapons Policy T. Photographers/Videographers U. Lightning at Outdoor Events	13 14 14 15 15 15 16 16 16 16 17 17 18 18 22 22 22 23 24	
Chapter IV	Adult Division Policies A. Player Eligibility B. Team Eligibility C. Region Championships Eligibility D. USAV Open National Championships Eligibility E. Adding Players F. Matching Uniforms G. Membership Verification H. Late Tournament Entries	24 24 24 25 25 25 25 25	

	I. Responsible Party	26
	J. Open Nationals Entry Fee Reimbursement Policy	26
Chapter V	Junior Division Policies	
	A. Club Season Definition in Arizona Region	27
	B. Club Recognition	27
	C. Region Registration and Participation	27
	D. Certificates of Insurance	29
	E. Quiet Period	29
	F. Open House Period	29
	G. Tryouts	30
	H. Commitment Period	31
	I. Club Commitment	31
	J. Recruiting Guidelines	32
	K. Signing Date Rule	33
	L. Approved Contact of A Junior Age Player	
	Personal Contact Male and Female Players	33
	M. Flyers/Brochures	34
	N. Preseason Open Gyms, Camps, Clinics	34
	O. Junior Player Eligibility	34
	P. Coach Eligibility	35
	Q. Team Eligibility	35
	R. Age Waivers for Junior Players	35
	S. Adding Players to an Existing Team	36
	T. Borrowing a Player within a club	36
	U. Changing Teams within the Same Club	37
	V. Player Release Policy	37
	W. USAV Frozen Roster Rule	38
Chapter VI	Officials' Division Policies are located in the Official's Handbook	
Chapter VII	Glossary of Terms	38

CHAPTER I: DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND APPEALS

A. Concept of Due Process

The concept of Due Process is to insure the right of the accused to confront his/her accuser(s), to present his/her side of the story, to receive fair consideration, and to have the opportunity for the decision to be reviewed by another authority to make sure Due Process was received. It is the intent of the Arizona Region of USA Volleyball to provide a procedure affording any individual or team, which is accused of violating any of the codes of conduct, sexual misconduct allegations, ethics violations, substance abuse and/or doping policy violations or inappropriate behavior within a Regional volleyball context, an opportunity to be heard before any sanction or penalty may be imposed.

B. Types of Incidents

There are generally three basic types of incidents causing complaints or accusations:

1. Incidents requiring immediate action.

These actions would take place prior to a hearing. These incidents generally involve a consideration of safety such as child molestation, violence, property destruction or violation of the Code of Conduct. Such actions should always be followed by an investigation and a hearing.

2. Incidents requiring prompt action.

These decisions/actions would take place before the next Arizona Region Board of Directors meeting.

These generally involve such considerations as inappropriate behavior that is not threatening or to the level of immediate suspension, improper uniforms, violation of tournament procedures and/or referee assignments.

3. Incidents requiring actions in the near future.

These are minor situations that can be heard and a decision rendered by the Ethics and Compliance Officer. Normally no hearing is required for these incidents. The decision will be relayed to the Arizona Region Board of Directors.

C. Scope

- 1. A disciplinary action shall be based on a violation of any of the following:
 - a. SafeSport Violations
 (See <u>www.usavolleyball.org</u> SafeSport General Resources SafeSport Handbook)
 - Ethics
 (See Arizona Region Club Director Agreement, USAV Code of Conduct and Jr Club Personnel Code of Ethics which can be found on the Arizona

Region Website Handbook www.azregionvolleyball.org)

Code of Conduct
 USAV Code of Conduct is electronically signed by each member in the online registration system or on page 2 of the USAV Membership

application. All other Codes of Conduct can be found on the Arizona Region Website Handbook.

- d. Eligibility Rules (See Arizona Region Policy Manual and USAV Pre-Tournament Manuals)
- e. USA Volleyball Doping and Substance Abuse Policy (See USAV Code of Conduct)
- f. Actions pertaining to volleyball that are perceived NOT to be in the best interest of the Region or its members.
- g. A recommendation by a USA Volleyball National Event Arbitrator, an Event Ethics and Eligibility Committee or the USA Volleyball Corporate Ethics and Eligibility Committee for the Region to take some action.

D. Procedure

In order to address the various types of complaints or accusations and to reduce the time of delay required in responding to the various types of accusation or complaints, the Arizona Region Board of Directors has adopted the following procedure:

- A person who wants to register a complaint and wishes to discuss the matter may contact the Arizona Region Ethics and Compliance Officer (ECO). If the incident involves SafeSport misconduct violations, the SafeSport Director may also be contacted to discuss the complaint.
- 2. A complaint or accusation regarding a violation of any of the above shall be reported, in writing, to the Arizona Region Office.
- 3. The ECO may investigate the nature of the complaint and attempt to verify the complaint before determining if there is any merit to the complaint. If the ECO determines that the complaint has merit, the ECO may act as the accuser on behalf of the person bringing the complaint, and especially if the person bringing the complaint is a minor. If the ECO brings the complaint on behalf of the complainant or if the complaint is a violation of SafeSport policy, the ECO shall NOT be a member of the Ethics and Compliance Committee (ECC) for the purposes of proceeding toward a resolution of the complaint.
 - a. If the complaint or allegation is regarding a SafeSport violation and was reported to the SafeSport Director, the SafeSport Director will immediately contact the ECO for an investigation of validity.
 - b. If the SafeSport violation involves any type of sexual misconduct and is found to be valid, the SafeSport Director will report the allegations to the US Center for SafeSport Agency and the appropriate local authorities.
- 4. A complaint or notice of accusation should include the following:
 - a. A written complaint or notice of the accusation or allegations.
 - b. Specific facts detailing the allegations or accusations of the complaint with specific details as to the name(s), time and place of the occurrence.

- c. The names and addresses of all witnesses and, where possible, their written statements accompanying the complaint or allegation. Witness statements should state their observations and personal knowledge of the allegations noted in the complaint.
- 5. Upon receipt of a complaint regarding a violation, the Region Office shall make a record of receipt and forward a copy of the complaint and any additional information submitted to the ECO. The Commissioner shall be notified that a complaint was received. The Commissioner shall instruct the ECO, or appoint another investigator, to investigate the allegations set forth in the complaint and accompanying witness statements.
- 6. The ECO/Investigator shall ascertain whether the complaint or accusation requires immediate action, prompt action or is one that may be determined. The ECO shall thereafter cause an investigation to begin to verify the allegations and facts of the complaint and witness statements.
 - a. Such an investigation shall be done expeditiously and concluded in a timely manner. The investigation shall be initiated not later than twenty (20) calendar days from receipt of the complaint or accusation.
 - b. The ECO shall notify the accused that a complaint has been filed and ask for a statement from the accused.
- 7. The ECO/Investigator may, after further investigation, reclassify the incident based on the facts surrounding the complaint or accusation.
- 8. Upon completion of the investigation, the ECO/Investigator shall:
 - a. Confer with the remaining members of the ECC and make a determination, or
 - b. Convene and Chair the ECC for a hearing and determination, or
 - c. If the ECO is the complainant or if the allegations are a SafeSport misconduct violation, the ECO/Investigator will compile the facts, witness statements and any other documents submitted with the complaint and turn them over to the appointed ECC Chair for a determination. The ECO/Investigator will not make a recommendation or determination.
- 9. The ECC shall be comprised of three (3) members:
 - a. The ECO shall act as the Chair unless the ECO is the complainant or the allegations involve SafeSport misconduct violations;
 - i. In the event the ECO is the complainant or the allegations involve SafeSport misconduct violations, the Commissioner will appoint a Chair.
 - b. Two (2) other designated members of the Region Advisory Board or appointees of the Commissioner, all of whom shall be members in good standing of the Arizona Region.

E. The Process

1. The Ethics and Compliance Committee (ECC) shall take the following steps to determine the validity and veracity of the complaint and accompanying witness statement(s), if any, and confirm that a violation has occurred.

a. Notification

- 1. The ECC shall notify the accused that a formal complaint has been lodged against him/her by certified mail to the last known address of the accused, as documented in the Region's records. The content of the notice shall include:
 - i. A copy of the complaint and any witness statements
 - ii. A statement that the individual has a right to respond along with an explanation of how that person may respond initially (in writing, fax or email).
 - iii. A statement that a penalty or sanction may be imposed as a result of the complaint.
 - iv. A notice that a written response and/or request for a hearing is required within twenty (20) calendar days of receipt and required in order for a hearing to be held.
 - v. A notice that a failure to respond to the complaint within twenty (20) calendar days may be a basis for the ECC to meet and determine what action should be taken regarding the complaint and the accused, without input from the accused.
 - vi. Once the complaint investigation is underway and the accused has been advised of the specific conduct violations, the option may be offered the accused to accept an alternative sanction agreement. This agreement will consist of the accused acknowledging the full and total responsibility for his/her actions. The accused must also be willing to accept a sanction commensurate with the violation, which is recommended by the ECO. This action must be approved by a majority vote of the ECC Hearing board and then confirmed by the Commissioner. Details of the agreed upon arrangement will then become part of the investigation file and kept on file with the Region.

b. The Hearing

- 1. At the end of the twenty (20) day response period:
 - a. If the accused responds but does not request a hearing, the ECC may proceed with a determination.

- b. If the accused does not respond, the ECC may proceed with a determination without input from the accused.
- c. If the accused responds but does not request a hearing, does not attend the scheduled hearing, accepts an agreed upon alternative sanction, or does not respond at all, and a determination with sanction is made, the accused does not have the right to appeal the sanction imposed.
- d. If the accused responds with a request for a hearing, the ECC Chair shall set a hearing date, time and location and notify the accused, the accuser, any witnesses and the members of the ECC to such.
 - i. The hearing may be held by conference call with the agreement of the accuser, the accused, and the members of the ECC. If by conference call, the ECC Chair will initiate the conference call at the time and date agreed upon by all parties.
- 2. The hearing or conference call shall be conducted as follows:
 - i. Presentation of the accusation and evidence in support of the accusation
 - ii. Response, defense, or counter argument of the accused and presentation of any pertinent and specific responses to the accusation or complaint
 - iii. Opportunity for clarification by the ECC from either party
 - iv. The decision of Ethics and Compliance Committee
- 3. In order to maintain order during the hearing, the ECC shall have full authority over the process and rules to be followed during the hearing.

c. The Decision

- 1. Once the ECC believes it has sufficient information to render a decision as to the allegations set forth in the complaint, the ECC will recommend one of the following:
 - No Action
 The ECC may elect to take no further action on this matter
 - ii. ProbationThe ECC may recommend probation
 - iii. Reprimand
 The ECC may recommend reprimand and additional sanctions
 - iv. Suspension

The ECC may recommend suspension from involvement with a volleyball-associated business within the Region for a specified period of time or for lifetime

- 2. The ECC is empowered to enter whatever sanctions it deems appropriate. The determination by the ECC shall be binding on the accused, pending appeal by the accused.
- d. After the Decision is Rendered

Once the ECC has rendered a decision:

- 1. A copy of the ECC decision shall be provided to the accused via certified mail.
 - i. If the accused was disciplined in some way, he/she shall be provided a copy of the Appeal Procedure, noted herein, with instructions on how to file an appeal.
 - ii. If the accused wishes to appeal the decision he/she has twenty (20) calendar days from the date the certified mail was sent to submit a written request for appeal.
 - iii. If the accused does not want to contest the decision, he/she must respond such to the Region Office within twenty (20) calendar days of the certified mail date.
- 2. A copy of the ECC decision shall be provided to the Region Office. The Commissioner will be notified that a decision was rendered but not what the decision of the ECC was in the event of an appeal.
- 3. If the accused was disciplined and is a junior coach, the ECC Chair will inform the club director of the accused the decision and sanctions imposed by the ECC.
- 4. Once it has been determined that no appeal of the ECC decision is forthcoming, the ECC Chair shall submit its determination and any sanctions that were imposed to the Commissioner. A file of the process will be maintained at the Region Office. The file will contain the complaint, statements by witnesses, statements by the accused and the decision of the ECC.

F. Appeal Procedure

- 1. If a member is disciplined by the ECC, the member shall have a right to appeal the ECC decision to the Arizona Region Board of Directors.
- 2. No appeal will be allowed for an accused that is sanctioned by the ECO or ECC who does not respond to the accusations, does not attend the ECC Hearing or enters into an alternative sanction agreement.

- 3. The accused must submit a written request for appeal to the Region Office within twenty (20) calendar days of the ECC decision notification sent by certified mail.
- 4. The accused shall be offered the opportunity to address the Arizona Region Board of Directors at a time that is convenient to all.
 - a. Neither party shall be entitled to provide any further evidence supporting his/her position.
 - b. The Arizona Region Board of Directors shall convene to determine:
 - If the ECC process has afforded the accused a fair opportunity to respond to the complaint;
 - ii. Whether the complaint was supported by evidence from persons having personal knowledge who personally witnessed the violation complained, and
 - iii. Whether the accused provided any evidence of a defense or explanation which would explain the action by the accused, or
 - iv. Whether the accused provided evidence by witnesses who also had personal knowledge or who personally witnessed the facts and circumstance alleged; and
 - v. Whether the decision and any sanctions imposed by the ECC were appropriate.
- 5. The Arizona Region Board of Directors shall review the appeal and issue its decision within fourteen (14) calendar days of the meeting with the accused. The Commissioner will notify in writing, the accused, the accuser, the ECO and the Region Office of the decision of the Board of Directors.
- 6. The decision of the Arizona Region Board of Directors shall be final.
- 7. If the allegations were related to SafeSport misconduct, a copy of the complaint, findings, sanctions and any appeal decision may be submitted to the US Center for SafeSport and USA Volleyball SafeSport Director.
- 8. Following the decision of the Board of Directors, the accused may appeal to the USA Volleyball Corporate Ethics and Eligibility Committee. The Corporate E & E Committee will review whether the accused was provided Due Process at the Region level. They will not review evidence or statements. If they feel that Due Process for the accused did not happen at the Region level, they may refer it back to the Region to provide Due Process.

Updated 10/31/19

CHAPTER II – REGION RELATED POLICIES

A. Refund Policy

1. Membership Fee Refund

The annual membership fee is broken into 2 parts at the time of purchase. There is a national portion paid directly to USAV; there is a region portion paid directly to the Arizona Region.

Any refunds requested must be first processed by the Region. USAV will not refund any portion that the Region does not refund.

With the given above, the Arizona Region will refund a membership fee only as stated below:

- a. For a full membership that was generated in SportsEngine and a request for refund was submitted the same calendar month a full refund will be issued if there was no participation using that membership. (Example, did not participate in any pre-tryout Open Houses, Camps or Clinics, Tryouts, Tournaments, etc.).
- b. For a full membership that was generated in SportsEngine and a request for refund was submitted the same calendar month a partial refund will be issued if there was participation using that membership. (Example, participated in pre-tryout club Open Houses, Camps or Clinics, Tryouts, Tournaments, etc.).
- c. For a full membership that was generated in SportsEngine in one calendar month and the request for refund comes in a different month, a partial refund will be issued if there was not participation or just attended tryouts for a club using that membership.
- d. For a full membership that was generated in SportsEngine in one calendar month and a request for refund came in a different month, no refund will be issued if there was participation beyond the tryout period on that membership.
- e. No refunds will be given for partial one day or one event memberships.
- f. Background screens are non-refundable regardless of when the membership was generated in SportsEngine.

2. Camp, Clinic, Tryout or Program Refund from an Event the AZ Region is hosting.

- a. For withdrawal from a camp, clinic, league, program or tryout a full refund will be given if requested before the event takes place.
- b. No refund will be given if the request is submitted after the event starts.
- c. No refund will be given for an unsatisfactory experience.

3. Tournament Contract Fees

Tournament Contract fees are non-refundable should the team disband, not attend a tournament due to NQ or other tournament participation or not be able to continue the season.

4. Tournament Entry Fees

a. Tournament entry fees for events the Arizona Region is hosting (example, an adult tournament in which a single entry is paid or the Vulture Peak Challenge) are fully refundable if the team withdraws before the entry deadline.

Once the entry deadline has passed, a partial refund can be requested if there is a waiting list for the event and the place in the tournament can be filled. If there is no waiting list or the place cannot be filled, the entry fee is non-refundable if the team withdraws after the entry deadline.

b. The Arizona Region National Club Qualifier entry fee is non-refundable after the entry deadline. A full refund can be requested if the team withdraws prior to the entry deadline or later qualifies in a higher division at a National Qualifier.

B. Financial Status Policy

- 1. Any club with an outstanding balance due to the Arizona Region will not be allowed to enter a team into the AZ NCQ or any other Region sanctioned events until the balance is paid in full.
- 2. Any club/team with an outstanding balance due to the Arizona Region will have all their teams pulled from the Region Championships tournaments unless the balance due is paid in full at least 10 days before the specific Region Championships tournament weekend. Once the tournament is formatted and/or posted on the website the team(s) will not be re-entered into the format.
- 3. The club director or adult team rep of a club/team with an outstanding balance due to the Arizona Region is considered not in good standing with the Arizona Region and is therefore not eligible to vote on issues before the Junior Forum, in elections of the Board of Directors or Junior Committee or to run for a position on either.
- 4. For a junior or adult member that has an outstanding monetary debt to a club or team and it is determined by Small Claims Court that the club is due the money, the Arizona Region will honor that judgement and put a Region Hold on the member's membership until such time as the member has made reparations or reach a financial agreement with the club or team. The club will have (1) one year from the end of the season in which the player participated with that club or team to file with the court and present the judgement to the AZ Region. The Region Hold will be removed after (2) two consecutive seasons regardless of a financial agreement being made between the (2) two parties.

C. Late Fees and Fines Policy

- 1. The Arizona Region has established seasonal deadlines for tournament entries, tournament contract payments, membership registration, team registration materials, coach certifications, official certifications. For any missed deadline a \$100 per item late fee may be assessed to an individual, team and/or a club.
- 2. Fees and fines that have been levied against an individual, team or club must be paid before the individual, team or club may participate any further. These fines may be for, but are not limited to, the following: No show fines, late withdrawal

fines, leaving without refereeing fine, refusal to R1 fine, late registration materials, coaches not compliant with SafeSport or Coach's Education requirements prior to the first tournament, individuals not registered and/or background screened before tryouts, playing and/or working, late tournament contract payments.

D. Arizona Region Logo Usage Policy

The Arizona Region of USA Volleyball is one Region of USA Volleyball. Each club that registers in Arizona is considered a member club of the Arizona Region. We are proud to have Arizona Region clubs display their affiliation with the Arizona Region and USA Volleyball. However, due to some financial sponsorship contracts certain logos can only be used in certain ways.

- 1. The Arizona Region logo may be used by member clubs in accordance with the following restrictions:
 - a. The use of the logo must be requested each season with a signed Use Agreement submitted prior to the ordering of uniforms and/or the use of the logo.
 - b. The logo may not be changed in proportion or in color
 - c. The logo may not be used to defame or defraud anyone or anything.
 - d. The logo may be used only to display affiliation with the Arizona Region. It may not be used to profit the club.
 - e. Violation of the annual Use Agreement or this policy will result in the sanction of the club and a \$5000 fine.
 - f. Clubs are not required to use the Arizona Region logo.
- 2. The USAV registered logo may not be used on anything unless permission is given by USAV. USA Volleyball has a USAV Club logo that can be used with permission. Contact USA Volleyball for information.

E. PVL Prize Money Policy

Prize money earned by a top finish at a PVL tournament by an Arizona team will be shared as follows:

50% split among the players on the team

10% split between the coaches of the team

40% to the Arizona Region

AZ Region Policies Manual CHAPTER III – TOURNAMENT RELATED POLICIES

A. Facilities

The Arizona Region is dependent on schools and facilities to host our tournaments. As such our teams, coaches, players and parents of team members must adhere to the rules, standards and policies of the Arizona Region and the facilities we use. Teams, including parents of team members or coaches, not adhering to the rules, standards and policies of the Arizona Region or any of our facilities as reported by the tournament site

director, host facility or lead official may be subject to fine, sanction or suspension from further play or attendance by the Board of Directors.

1. No Cooking or Heating Allowed

There is no cooking or heating of any kind allowed at any of the Arizona Region tournament sites. This includes, but is not limited to, sterno heated dishes, crockpots, barbeques, hibachi grills, hot plates, Coleman stoves, fire pits, gas heaters, etc. Anything that requires electricity or produces heat is not allowed. This is for the safety and protection of our facilities.

- 2. There is no food allowed in any of the gyms. All food must be kept outside in the team camp areas. Coolers are not allowed in any gyms.
- 3. Drink for team members and participants must be in containers with screw tops. Some facilities allow only water in closed top bottles. Any other drinks must be kept outside the gym including coffee and soft drinks.
- 4. All team camp areas must be clear of any food and drink debris at the conclusion of the tournament. Each team is responsible to clean up its own team camp area and haul away the trash from the team camp.
- 5. No Alcohol or Smoking on the premises of any of our tournaments. Arizona State law requires school campuses to be alcohol, drug and tobacco free zones. Arizona Region and USA Volleyball prohibit the use of alcohol by participants or spectators at any volleyball event. This includes the team camp areas. Alcohol and parents are never a good mix at junior events.

B. Pack It In/Pack It Out Policy

In an effort to reduce waste and trash at tournament events and to reduce the time site directors have to remain after the event to clean up, the Arizona Region has put forth a Pack it in/Pack it out policy. All food/snacks/plastic water bottles/beverage containers/pizza boxes/anything else that is not used or becomes trash at the end of the day should be taken home and recycled or trashed at the home of the person bringing it to the event.

Some of our sites have to schedule extra commercial trash pick-ups just to accommodate the amount of trash left at sites. Many of our site hosts or site directors spend an extra 2 hours following a tournament just picking up and taking trash to the bins. In the end this may help people be mindful of what they bring to events and should keep our costs lower as these sites don't have to schedule additional trash pick-up or spend hours cleaning up after an already long day. We encourage all teams to use refillable water bottles instead of single use disposable plastic water bottles. Hydro-Flasks are not required, just refillable water bottles.

In this age of "green" let us all do our part.

C. Food and Beverages in the Gym Policy – 13 Point Penalty

Food and Beverages (except water in a closed top bottle) are not allowed in the gym facilities used by the Arizona Region. For any team whose player, coach, club director, spectator, parent or anyone else attending an event that is associated with their team brings food or beverages (other than closed top water bottles) into a gym there will be a 13-point penalty assessed against the team in the first set of their next match. If the policy is violated a 2nd time by the same team, there will be another 13-point penalty and a \$200 fine assessed to the team. The fine must be paid before the team can participate further. Notification of penalty will be given to the Region and will be tracked and assessed if the policy is continually violated by the same team.

D. Roster Requirements at Tournaments

A current USAV verified roster must be turned in at each tournament at check-in. The roster must be a <u>verified</u> SportsEngine or AES roster specific to the tournament. If the roster has not changed from a previous tournament, a copy of the same roster may be turned in.

Invalid rosters are: AAU tournament roster, a season roster from SportsEngine that does not show a USAV verified member number, a handwritten roster, a team registration form, a roster that is missing players or coaches that are participating or rosters that are presented on a phone or other electronic type roster.

The valid roster must list all players and coaches that are participating in the current tournament. If a player on the roster is not participating in that specific tournament, they are to be crossed off so it can be proven that they did not participate on that date. Players and coaches that are missing from the roster may not be handwritten on the roster.

An invalid roster that is presented will incur an 8-point penalty in the first set of the team's first match of the tournament day.

E. Tournament Check-in Policy

All coaches of junior teams or adult team reps are required to be checked in AND attend the Coach/Team Rep meetings held ½ hour before the tournament start time. A team whose coach/team reps have not checked in AND attended the Coach/Team Rep meeting are subject to a penalty of 8 points on their first match of the day. This applies to ALL teams including those that neither ref nor play the first match round of the tournament wave/day.

Requirements at Check In:

- 1. Coach Photo ID
- 2. Current verified SportsEngine or AES Roster no other "rosters" will be accepted.
- 3. Medical Release Form for each junior player on the roster. For any player that the coach does not have a Medical Release Form in his/her possession that player is not permitted on the court until one is produced.

F. Teams Playing with an Unregistered Player

Teams that allow unregistered players to participate in a practice or tournament are subject to fine and/or suspension for the current season. The club director, coach and player will be referred to the Ethics and Compliance Officer for investigation and sanction. The reason for this fine is that an unregistered player participating in practices or events voids the USAV liability and participant accident insurance covering the event.

G. Player Age and Identity

Each player on a team is to represent only themselves and in their appropriate age division and team gender. If there is a question regarding the age or identity of any player or coach the player or coach may be required to show picture identification as proof of identity at any time. Any player playing on a team they are not age or gender eligible for or under an assumed name or with the jersey of another player may be subject to sanction or suspension from the Arizona Region. The club director, team representative, coach, player and other members of the team are all subject to sanction or suspension by the Board of Directors for allowing a player or coach to participate under a false identity or in an age or gender group they are not eligible for on the team.

H. Late Team Penalties

Teams that are late to the court to referee or to play will be assessed a point per minute penalty on their next match. The first set is lost at 10 minutes late. The match is lost at 20 minutes late. If the penalty is assessed against the referee team and they have no further matches scheduled that day, the site director will notify the Region Office of the penalty and it will be assessed on the first match of their next tournament. The time starts at the end of the timed warmup.

I. Late Withdrawal or No Show at a Tournament

If a team is unable to play in a tournament they have entered, they must notify the Region Office by Thursday before the tournament date to avoid a \$50 late withdrawal fine. If a team does not show up at the tournament or have enough players to play, the team will be assessed a No Show fine of \$100. These fines must be paid in full before the team will be allowed to participate in another tournament. In addition to any penalty fees, tournament entry fees will be forfeited.

Junior teams that pull out of the Region Championships tournament after the tournament schedule has been posted on the Region website will be fined \$150 for late withdrawal. This fine must be paid before any other teams from the club could play in the Region Championships or before the club director could register for the new season.

J. Reduced Number of Players

The USAV Rules of Competition do not allow for teams to play with less than 6 eligible players. The Arizona Region has modified this rule so that in the Club Division, if a team drops below 6 players during a tournament due to injury, the team would be allowed to continue in the tournament and play with 5 players. The 6th person in the rotation is a ghost – when the ghost comes back to serve, it is point to the opponent and the opponent gets the serve. This modification is not allowed at any interregional tournament or qualifier so teams that travel are not allowed to use this option.

K. Weather Related Tournament Attendance

If a team is unable to attend a seeding tournament due to the roads being closed for weather, the team will be allowed to hold the seed they were given prior to the tournament happening. If the roads are open and they choose not to attend, they will finish last in their division and take the seed number associated with last place. 9/20/16

L. Concussion Policy

If a person incurs an injury at an AZ Region/USAV sanctioned event and is thought to have a concussion or fails the concussion protocol, as determined by the coach, they may not return for the duration of the event. The player must also be cleared by the club director before they may return to practice and/or competition.

In the event of a misdiagnosis of a concussion, there must be a letter from a doctor clearing the player that explains the misdiagnosis and clears the player to return to the competition the next day of the competition. The letter is to be given to the club director who would clear the player to play. The letter must then be given to the site director allowing the player to return to competition.

CDC Concussion Protocol and Managing Return to Activities are to be the standard when making the determination in the absence of a trainer or other medical professional.

M. Team Referee Assignments

The Arizona Region provides a paid R1 official for each court at all power league and Region Championship tournaments. Each team is required to fulfill referee assignments as part of their play in each tournament. Each team is required to supply a Scorer, Libero Tracker, Score Flipper and an R2 and two linesmen. The operation of the tournament is dependent on each team fulfilling their referee assignment.

Adult and Junior teams are to attend Score/Ref training or by Train the Trainer teach a minimum of three R2 and Linesman and three Scorers per team. The teams are to be trained to proficiency in each of the disciplines.

Teams that do not fulfill all or part of their referee assignments are subject to a \$100 fine for each occurrence which must be paid before the next tournament scheduled. If the team misses more than one referee assignment they may be subject to sanction or removal from the tournament schedule.

In the event that a paid R1 is not provided for each court by the Region, a certified official who is also a coach will be paid for their work as an R1 during their team's referee assignments. If the coach is not a certified referee, the club will be credited \$20 for every match the team had to provide an R1. If the coach refuses to R1 or provide an adult R1 for the match, the coach will be fined \$100 for not fulfilling their ref assignment. The match counts of coaches/clubs receiving compensation must be recorded on the Referee Tournament Report and Pay Sheet of the site for the coach/club to be paid/credited.

N. Electronics Policy

The Arizona Region acknowledges the increased capability and widespread use of smartphones and other high tech electronic devices by players and coaches during their downtime at tournaments. This would include global interactive applications, music, video and games, such as Facebook, Twitter, Snapchat, Instagram, Pokemon Go, etc.

While these devices and opportunities are great during downtime, they are not good during referee assignment time. The use of electronic devices at the score table during a match can interfere and impede the proper administration and flow of match play and extend the length of the tournament day. Therefore, this Electronics policy strictly prohibits the use of communicative, entertainment or game devices by any member of the officiating team during their ref assignment. This includes the personnel at or near the score table, on the stand, on the pole or on the lines. The exception would be the use of a phone as a timing device only when approved by the Match Referee. The officiating team consists of but is not limited to: club directors, head coaches, assistant coaches, scorers, assistant scorers, libero trackers, second referees, line judges or any other team or club member that is sitting at or near the score table or on the court and is responsible for scoring, line judging, R2, R1 or monitoring any of those responsibilities.

Sanctions:

- 1. First offense will be a verbal warning to the coach and any team member(s) in violation. All electronics will be removed from the score table before play can resume. A Team Delay Warning is issued and recorded on the match score sheet.
- 2. Second offense will result in the violating team losing eight (8) points to its next opponent;
- 3. Third offense will result in the team forfeiting the first set of their next match and the head coach is referred to the Ethics and Compliance Officer.

The First Referee on the court will assess all warnings or sanctions and notify the Site Director and/or Lead Official of each violation for assessment and documentation on the score sheet for the current match, as well as the scoresheet of the violating team's next match.

O. Deficient Scorer Policy

The Arizona Region requires an adult or junior team to be trained in scoring, second referee and linesman disciplines to fulfill the referee assignments at each tournament. Teams that are found to be deficient in scoring impede the flow of the match and extend the tournament day. Therefore the following process will be followed for teams found to be deficient in scoring at a tournament:

- The Match Official will notify the Site Director and Lead Official of the team
 deficient in scoring. The Lead Official will take a picture of the score sheet which
 will be sent to the Officials Division Coordinator and the Scorer Training Director.
- 2. The Officials Division Coordinator will contact the Club Director and notify them of the deficiency in scoring for their team.
- 3. The team will be required to be retrained either by contacting an official clinician and having another clinic or by taking the Junior Scorer training modules in the Region Clinics. This must be done prior to the team's next tournament.
- 4. If the team is found to be deficient in scoring again, the team will be sanctioned 8 points at their next match and the Head Coach will be referred to the Ethics and Compliance Officer.

P. Purple Card Policy

1. Purpose of Purple Card Sanction Policy

The purpose and intent of the Purple Card Sanction policy, is to effectively address and sanction any inappropriate or prohibited behavior exhibited by any AZ Region member (adult or junior), parent or spectator, attending and observing any AZ Region-sponsored Power Tournament. This policy is further intended to preserve order in its activities and maintain the safety and protection of all AZ Region members. This policy outlines the procedural usage of the "PURPLE" card, which supplements the yellow and red sanction cards currently used by match official(s) (as dictated by the DCR). This policy replaces the Penalty Point Sanction policy. The Region Parent/Spectator Code of Conduct policy remains in effect.

2. Prohibited Behavior

- a. Prohibited behavior would include, but not limited to, any comment(s) made or action(s) displayed, deemed by others as rude, profane, disrespectful, disruptive or aggressive, which interferes with the normal progress of a tournament match.
- b. Any behavior prohibited by USAV and the AZ Region Code of Conduct policies
- c. Any misconduct deemed contrary to normally accepted behavior, which results in the unnecessary interruption of a tournament match
- 3. Those affected by this policy

This policy applies to the following:

- a. Any AZ Region adult member, i.e. club directors, coaches, rostered adult(s) or chaperones <u>NOT</u> currently participating in the match and has assumed the role of spectator. This policy also applies to these same individual(s) displaying misconduct <u>BEFORE</u> the start of a match, as well as <u>AFTER</u> the match has officially ended.
- Any AZ Region junior player displaying misconduct <u>BEFORE</u> the start of a match, as well as <u>AFTER</u> the match has officially ended. (See Section VI for

- sanction guidelines for junior players)
- c. Any non-Region member, i.e. parent(s) or relative(s) of any AZ Region member
- d. Any attendee or spectator of an AZ Region sanctioned tournament match.

4. When this policy is applicable

- a. The use of yellow and red card sanctions will remain in force according to the policies and procedures set by the Domestic Competition Rules (DCR)
- b. Use of the "Purple" Sanction card may be applied to any situation during a match, where spectator misbehavior occurs and the 1st Referee deems it necessary to address the misbehavior.
- c. For misconduct by anyone before or after a match has ended, the Parent/Spectator Code of Ethics is in effect.

5. Application of the Purple Warning Card

- a. Minor Conduct
 - 1. Minor misconduct offenses are not subject to sanctions. It is the duty of the 1st Referee to prevent spectators and parents from reaching the sanctioning level. This can be done in two stages:
 - a. Stage 1: Verbal Warning
 - b. Stage 2: Issuance of Purple and Yellow Card Warning
 This warning is issued to the team in which the offending spectator or
 parent is affiliated. The 1st Referee shall hold up the Purple and Yellow
 cards in one hand, initiating this issuance. Both team captains are then
 summoned to the referee stand. This then is followed by a notification of
 the team warning, through the game captains to their head coach, that a
 parent or spectator affiliated with their team has reached the sanctioning
 level. Once either head coach determines affiliation, that head coach
 must inform the offender of the warning. This formal warning is not in
 itself a sanction but a symbol that misconduct has reached the
 sanctioning level for the match.
 - i. In the event the offender refuses to identify their team affiliation or fails to comply with the 1st Referee's request for identification, that offender is subject to a more serious sanction, including expulsion from the playing facility for the remainder of the tournament day.
 - ii. Purple card warnings are assessed to the affiliated team and are in force for the entire match. This means that each team may only receive one purple card warning.
 - iii. Purple card warnings are recorded on the score sheet but have no immediate consequences.

b. Misconduct Leading to Sanctions

Inappropriate conduct by a spectator or parent toward officials, playing teams, other parents or spectators is classified in three categories according to the seriousness of the offense.

- a. Rude Conduct: actions contrary to good manners or moral principles
- b. Offensive Conduct: defamatory or insulting words or gestures or any action expressing contempt.
- c. Aggression: actual physical attack or aggressive or threatening behavior

c. Sanction Scale

According to the judgment of the 1st Referee and depending upon the seriousness of the offense, the sanctions to be applied and recorded on the score sheet are **Penalty**, **Expulsion and Ejection/Ban**.

- a. **Penalty:** Rude or minor offensive conduct in the match by any parent or spectator is penalized with a point and service to the opponent
- b. **Expulsion** from the facility: Serious offensive misconduct by any parent or spectator is expulsion from the playing facility for the remainder of the tournament day with no other consequences.
- c. **Ejection/Ban** from the facility: Aggressive misconduct, e.g. physical attack, implied or threatened aggression, by any parent or spectator is automatically ejected from the tournament facility and banned from any AZ Regionsponsored event, tournament, practice, or related activity. This ban extends to all USAV/AZ Region affiliated practice or playing facilities for the remainder of the entire current season. No other consequences are applied.
- d. Application of Misconduct Sanctions
 - a. When Penalty sanctions are issued, it is displayed as Purple and Red cards held up jointly in one hand.
 - b. When Expulsion sanctions are issued, it is displayed as Purple and Red cards held up separately.
 - c. When Ejection/Bans are issued, no cards will be displayed. The 1st Referee immediately stops the match and secures the safety of those in the match. All Expulsions or Ejection/Bans require the notification and involvement of the Lead Official and/or Site Director for the following purposes:
 - 1. Documentation, e.g. Score sheet, Match Comment Form, Incident Reports, Facility forms, etc.
 - 2. Timely notification of the Region Ethics Compliance Officer
 - 3. Secure the removal of the offender from the facility
 - 4. All misconduct sanctions are individual sanctions, remain in force for the entire match and are recorded on the score sheet.
 - 5. Repetition of misconduct by the same parent or spectator in the same match is sanctioned progressively, which means that a more severe sanction is given for each successive offense.
 - 6. Expulsions or Ejection/Bans, due to offensive or aggressive misconduct does not require a previous sanction.

NOTE: Upon the refusal of the offender to vacate the playing facility, local law enforcement will be notified immediately.

e. Reinstatement

Parents or spectators sanctioned with an **Ejection/Ban** can only be reinstated, by a recommendation of the Region Ethics Compliance Officer and the approval of the Region Commissioner.

- 6. Application of Misconduct Warnings and Sanctions Against Junior Players In the event a participating junior player displays misconduct in a Region tournament as a spectator during a match or before/after a match, the following sanction guidelines shall be applied:
 - a. Any misconduct deserving a warning or sanction shall be directed by the

- Parent/Spectator Code of Conduct.
- b. If a junior player is charged with expulsion or ejection/ban, the player becomes the direct responsibility of the parent(s) or the head coach/club director.
 - 1. Junior players are not to be expelled or ejected from any playing facility individually, but fall under the direct supervision of parent(s) or the head coach/club director. No further participation by the player is allowed.
 - 2. A Match Comment Form must be submitted to the Region Office.
- 7. Recording Warnings and Sanctions on the Score Sheet
 - a. Issuance of Purple and Yellow Cards jointly (Misconduct Warning) Record a PC in the **W Warn** column; record the team at fault, the set number, and the score.
 - b. Issuance of Purple and Red Cards jointly (Misconduct Penalty)
 - 1. Record a PC in the **P Penalty** column, record the team at fault, the set number, and the score at the time of penalty.
 - 2. If penalty is against the serving team, record the serving team's exit score.
 - 3. Record the awarded penalty point. Slash and circle the opposing team's next point in the **POINTS COLUMN**
 - c. Issuance of Purple and Red Cards shown apart (Misconduct Expulsion)
 - 1. Record a P in the **E Expel** column, record the team at fault, the set number, and the score at the time of expulsion.
 - 2. No loss of service or penalty point awarded.
 - d. For Purple Ejection, a note on the **REMARKS** Section will give the following information: Purple Ejection, Full Name (If available), team at fault, set number, and the score at the time of ejection (Score of team at fault is first)
- 8. Summary of Misconduct and Card Display

Warning (No Sanction): Stage 1 – Verbal Warning

Stage 2 - symbol Purple and Yellow card held jointly

Warning recorded on score sheet

Penalty (Point and serve to opponent):

Symbol – Purple and Red card held jointly

Penalty recorded on score sheet

Expulsion (Expelled from playing facility for remainder of Tournament day):

Symbol - Purple and Red card held separately

Expulsion is recorded on Score sheet

(Note: See Section VI for sanction guidelines for junior players. AZ Region Match Comment Form and ECO notification is required)

Ejection/Ban (Ejected from facility or removal/Suspended from Region Tournaments for remainder of season):

NO card display - Stop match - Notify Lead official/Site Director-Ejection/Bans are recorded on score sheets

(Note: See Section VI for sanction guidelines for junior players.

AZ Region Match Comment Form and ECO notification is required) 9/20/2017

Q. Music and Artificial Noisemakers at Tournaments

1. Music

The Arizona Region tournaments rarely, if ever, have just one court in a facility. Therefore, if play is scheduled on more than one court in the facility no music is allowed during any part of a match. If there is just one court scheduled and the noise would not affect any other court, music would be allowed during the warm up period only, if both coaches agree.

2. Artificial noisemakers, air horns, balloons, mega phones and electronic amplifiers are not permitted at any Arizona Region tournament.

4/18/18

R. Service Animals

Under the ADA, a service animal is defined as a dog that has been individually trained to do work or perform a task for an individual with a disability. The task(s) performed by the dog must be directly related to the person's disability.

Security, emotional support, therapy, comfort or companion animals do not qualify as service animals under the ADA and are not permitted in the volleyball facility. To bring a Service Animal into a volleyball facility:

- 1. The dog must be a service dog trained to perform a specific task for an individual with a disability.
- 2. Must be harnessed, leashed or tethered and under the control of the handler at all times.
- 3. Must behave properly no barking or aggressive behavior unless this behavior is in the course of doing their job or the result of being provoked.
- 4. It is the responsibility of the handler to clean up after the dog.
- 5. The handler must contact the AZ Region Volleyball office a minimum of one day ahead of time to notify them that the animal will be on site for a tournament.
- 6. No more than one Service dog is allowed per individual.

S. Weapons Policy

In order to ensure a safe environment for all USAV/AZ Region members and guests, our Region prohibits the wearing, transporting, storage, or presence of firearms or other dangerous weapons, ammunition, fireworks or any other materials which by commonly accepted principals would be considered harmful or a hazard to another person at any Region sanctioned practice, tournament or other event. Any person in possession of a firearm or other weapon while on our facilities/property or while otherwise not fulfilling official law enforcement responsibilities may face disciplinary action, which may include suspension, expulsion, or up to revocation of USAV Region membership.

Any person who violates this policy may be removed from the playing facility and reported to law enforcement authorities. Possession of a valid concealed weapons permit authorized by the State of Arizona is not an exemption under this policy.

2. Definition

Firearms or other dangerous weapons mean:

- Any device from which a projectile may be fired by an explosive
- Any simulated firearm operated by gas or compressed air

- Sling shot
- Sand club
- Metal knuckles
- Any spring blade knife
- Any knife which opens or is ejected open by an outward, downward thrust or movement
- This includes any other object or device not mentioned above, that can be used as a dangerous tool or implement, which poses a reasonable risk of bodily harm or injury or death

3. Exemptions

This policy does not apply to:

- Law enforcement personnel engaged in official duties;
- Security personnel engaged in official duties;
- Any person engaged in military activities sponsored by the federal or state government, while engaged in official duties

4. Notification

"No Firearms or other Dangerous Weapons" signs shall be conspicuously posted within all sanctioned AZ Region playing facilities and in parking areas and grounds surrounding our facilities. These signs will clearly indicate that firearms and other weapons are not to be carried, while attending any Region sanctioned event or activity.

5. Reporting

Site Directors and /or Lead Officials shall request any Region member or visitor found in possession of a firearm or other dangerous weapon to remove the weapon from the facility/grounds and upon refusal or failure to comply, local law enforcement authorities shall be immediately notified.

6. Special instructions for AZ Region Members

Any Region member concerned about personal safety may request an escort (e.g., to a parking lot off premises) or other appropriate intervention by authorized Region personnel. Any action involving the threat of or the action whether direct or implied, should be reported immediately to the Site Director or other authorized Region personnel and law enforcement authorities notified.

Site Directors shall promptly complete a Match Comment Form and submit it as soon as possible to the Region Office. Any bonafide complaint may be directed in written form, by postal or electronic mail, to the Region Ethics Compliance Officer.

4/18/12

T. Photographers/Videographers

The Arizona Region considers safety of our athletes as a primary concern. Understandably there are parents and others that want to video tape or take photographs of their child participating in a volleyball match. The Arizona Region policy on videographers/photographers will be the same as the USAV policy.

The playing area of the court will be buffered by a free zone that is a minimum of 5 meters from each sideline and 8 meters from the end lines per FIVB guidelines. (FIVB Rules of the Game 1.1)

Photographers/Videographers/Parents are NOT permitted inside this free zone while the match is in progress (warm-up to completion of the match, including time-outs). Further, the free zone cannot be entered if it is within the free zone of adjoining court(s).

Any Photographer/Videographer/Parent within the free zone during play will be given one warning and removed from the free zone. If a second infraction occurs, the photographer/videographer/parent will be escorted from the facility.

U. Lightning at Outdoor Tournaments

The Arizona Region will follow the 30-30 Rule when it comes to lightning at or near our outdoor events. This can feel like a long time but it is not negotiable. The 30-30 Rule is this:

- 1. The first 30 refers to the flash-to-bang of lightning to thunder. If lightning is followed by thunder within 30 seconds, everyone should evacuate the area immediately and seek shelter. Safe shelter is in a building or car. Do not stand under trees or other tall objects that could attract lightning.
- 2. The second 30 refers to game resumption. The participants should not return to the area of play until 30 minutes after the last clap of thunder is heard or last flash of lightning is seen.

CHAPTER IV – ADULT DIVISION POLICIES

A. Adult Player Eligibility

An adult player in the Arizona Region must be a registered member of the Arizona Region of USA Volleyball for the current season. The player must meet the age eligibility requirements of the team they are being considered for unless competing in the AA, A, BB, or B Division.

Any junior age player participating on an adult team during the Arizona Region tournament season is required to have a waiver signed by their parents as part of the team paperwork requirement. If the junior age player is participating on a junior age team they are not eligible to participate with the adult team unless they have a signed Player Release Form from the junior club and are no longer playing on a junior age team.

B. Team Eligibility

All members of a team must be registered with the Arizona Region of USA Volleyball for the current season in order for the team to be eligible to compete. All players assigned to the team must meet the eligibility requirements for the skill and age level of the team of which they are participating.

Junior Girls 18's teams registered and participating in the Open Division may participate in the Arizona Region Women's A/AA Division on a tournament by tournament basis as needed to fill the tournament with the exception of the Arizona Region Women's A/AA Region Championships.

C. Region Championships Eligibility

Any registered adult team may enter the Arizona Region Championships. However, for a team to be eligible to advance to the Championship bracket at the Region

Championships all players on the Region Championships roster must have played with the team in a minimum of two (2) Arizona Region Power Tournaments during the current season AND the team must have played in a minimum of two (2) of the five (5) scheduled Power Tournaments during the current season. Teams not meeting the criteria will not advance to the Championship bracket and therefore, will not be eligible to claim any of the awards associated with the Region Championships.

Junior teams are not eligible to participate in the Adult Region Championships tournament.

D. USAV Open Championships Eligibility

Players with a Junior designated membership are not eligible to participate at the USAV Open Championships on any level team even if they have played with an adult team all season.

E. Adding Players

A new player may be added to a team's roster at any time provided the player has not been registered with another Arizona Region-registered team in the current season. Appropriate paperwork and fees must be submitted to the Arizona Region office BEFORE the player may participate in any practice or tournament.

Players that were first registered as a member of one Arizona Region-registered team must have a signed release from the original Team Rep BEFORE they may be added to the roster of and play with a different Arizona Region-registered team.

Any team found illegally adding players to a roster or allowing an ineligible player to play may be subject, but not limited to, fines and/or suspension of the Team Rep and/or player(s) involved.

F. Matching Uniforms

Adult teams playing in the Arizona Region must have matching uniform shirts. The shorts must be similar in style and color. Players who do not have a matching shirt or whose shorts are not similar in style and color will be asked to comply with this policy before stepping onto the court in an Arizona Region power tournament. If a team does not have enough players with matching uniforms (i.e., matching shirts or similar shorts), they will forfeit their matches until they can comply with either Arizona Region uniform policy or the Team Rep must agree to a \$50 fine which much be paid prior to the next tournament.

Teams going to the US Open Championships MUST meet the uniform requirements as specified in the current Domestic Competition Regulations to participate. Uniforms not meeting those specifications will result in penalties at the US Open Championships tournament.

G. Membership Verification

All teams must turn in an Official Team Roster from SportsEngine to the Site Director at the Arizona Region tournament check in. The Official Team Roster can be printed off the online registration system by any adult member of the team listed on the roster. The Team Rep will sign the bottom of the roster at check-in indicating it is correct as to players participating with their team that day. If a player is not on the roster they are not eligible to participate in the tournament. If a player is listed on the roster but is not playing that day the Team Rep should cross them off the roster. A roster is required for each tournament in order for the team to participate.

H. Late Tournament Entries

Teams that elect to enter the Arizona Region Adult tournaments on a "pay as you go" basis must submit the tournament entry form and appropriate payment to the Region Office a minimum of 10 days prior to the tournament date. Late tournament entries will be allowed on a space available basis only. There is no guarantee of entry in the tournament with a late entry. An entry without payment will not be considered.

I. Responsible Party

The Team Representative is responsible for all payments by an adult team to the Region Office for team fees, tournament entries, etc. It is the responsibility of the Team Rep to submit one form of payment (check, money order, cash, or credit card authorization) for each payment made to the Region Office.

J. Open Nationals Entry Fee Reimbursement Policy

With the intent of encouraging more of our adult teams to attend the USAV Open Championships the Arizona Region has created a process by which the champions of our Region can be reimbursed for their entry fee in the USA Volleyball Open Championships. The Region has developed a specific guideline which describes who is eligible to apply for the reimbursement money and the process that must be followed in order to receive it.

In order to fund this program, every team's tournament entry fee has a portion of this reimbursement built into the fee. The total amount collected is then used to reimburse the entry fees. Assuming the process is followed, the Region then uses this money to reimburse the teams after the US Open Championships. The number of teams entering the tournaments will determine the amount of money collected for this cause.

The Region Champion in the Men's and Women's A/AA & B/BB Divisions are eligible for this reimbursement only if they are attending the US Open Championships. If the Region Champion in a division is not going to attend the US Open Championships the highest finishing team in that division that has entered the USA Volleyball Open Championship is eligible for this reimbursement. To be eligible to receive this Region Champion perk, the team applying for the reimbursement money must enter the USA Volleyball Open Championships with at least 50% of their *original team roster* and at least 80% of AZ Region registered members if they are entering one of the club divisions (AA, A, BB or B) OR at least 80% of their team members must be registered in the Arizona Region if they are entering a conglomerate team (Open Division, Coed, Reverse Coed, U-Volley and all the Master's Divisions). Per USAV a team may pick up no more than 2 players on teams from another region. Their former teams must not be attending the US Open Championships for them to be eligible to be picked up by the AZ Region team.

To receive the reimbursement, the team must:

- a. Enter and participate in the US Open Championships.
- b. Be the highest finishing team in AZ Region Adult Championships with eligible players and in their level of play that attended the US Open Championship.
- c. All members of the team must represent the AZ Region in a positive manner which are outlined in both the Az Region and the USAV Code of Conduct
- d. Write a short article for the Arizona Region newsletter describing their experience at the Open Championships,

- e. Submit a picture of the team e.g., enjoying the local city offerings or a team picture, and
- f. Submit the article and picture with a request for refund no later than June 30.

CHAPTER V - JUNIOR DIVISION POLICIES

A. Club Season in the Arizona Region

- a. The Arizona Region considers the "Club Season" to be from the published tryout date through the last day of the respective Junior National Championships.
- b. The annual membership of Arizona Region of USA Volleyball is Sept 1 to Aug 31. Anyone participating in sanctioned Fall camps, clinics, tryouts, leagues or other programming after Sept 1st must register or renew their membership for the upcoming season prior to participation.

B. Club Recognition

The Arizona Region of USA Volleyball will recognize a club for the current season when the Director of the Club has registered, paid their membership fee for the current season, submitted and passed a background screen (if needed), is current in their SafeSport Training, signed the Junior Club Director Agreement for the current season and submitted the Club Registration Fee. By signing the Junior Club Director Agreement form the Director is committing the club to operate in the Arizona Region for the current season.

A \$200 Club Registration Fee has been established for a club to register with the Arizona Region for the current season. The fee will be waived for the season if the club director or their club representative attends the Boys Club Forum in August (for clubs offering boys' programming) and/or the General Assembly and Junior Forum in September (for clubs that offer girls' programming). If a club offers both boys' and girls' programming, they must attend both meetings for the fee to be waived. If a club does not attend their respective meeting or does not send a representative from the club the \$200 Club Registration Fee will be due with the first payment made to the Region for registration of teams.

Club recognition will allow:

- 1. Members to be registered with the club,
- 2. Teams from the club to be entered in regional and national tournaments.
- 3. The club director to participate in the Junior Forum,
- 4. Certificates of Insurance for practice facilities to be generated. If it happens to be that the club did not form any teams for the current season, all Certificates of Insurance are to be returned to the Arizona Region office and the Certificates of Insurance will be deactivated.
- 5. Tryouts for the club to be posted on the Arizona Region website.

C. Region Registration and Participation

The following requirements are expected for teams registering with the Arizona Region whether the club resides in Arizona or in a border Region:

1. Club Requirements

a. The Club Director and all adults associated with the club must be registered Arizona Region members with current background screens and current SafeSport certifications.

- b. Annual Club Registration Fee of \$200. This fee can be waived if the Club Director or appointed representative of the club attends the General Assembly and Junior Forum in September (for girls' clubs) or Boys Junior Forum in August (for boys' clubs). If you have both, you must attend both.
- c. The Club Director must sign and submit the Club Director Agreement.
- d. Open House and Tryout dates must be complied with. The Arizona Region is very strict when it comes to infringing on player eligibility with their school team. A club may not cause a player to become ineligible for their school team. Violations of this will result in disciplinary action.
- e. Regarding registration with other organizations: If a club registers any of the teams offered by the club with other organizations, the stricter requirements and policies of the organizations must be adhered to as to not violate the requirements and policies of either organization. This applies to all the teams in the club whether they are registered in one or multiple organizations.

2. Junior player requirements to be put on a roster

- a. Current member of the USAV/Arizona Region register in SportsEngine
- b. The player must meet the age and gender eligibility requirements of the team they are being considered for except as provided for in Age Waivers for Junior Players.
- c. Submit a copy or have a birth certificate on file with the AZ Region
- d. Complete the SafeSport Form, sign and submit
- e. Complete the Concussion Acknowledgement Form and submit

3. Coach requirements to be put on a roster

- a. Current member of the USAV/Arizona Region register in SportsEngine
- b. Current background screen
- c. Current Coaches certification must be a minimum of IMPACT certified and have taken some form of coach's education training if IMPACT certification is more than 3 years old. Coaches must maintain a current certification of education by attending approved coaches training a minimum of every 3 years.
- d. Current SafeSport training certification in SportsEngine.

4. Team Requirements

- a. Team Registration forms and supporting documents submitted by the deadline date established.
- b. Tournament contracts, seeding forms, registration materials and fees are submitted and paid by deadline dates.
- c. Each team that registers with the Arizona Region must sign a tournament contract and participate in the Arizona Region tournament schedule. A minimum of 80% attendance at tournaments is required for the out of Region teams to participate with the Arizona Region the next season.
- d. Players and coaches must become proficient in scoring, R2 Referee and Line Judging by attending a clinic either in person or via the USA Volleyball Academy prior to the first tournament for that team.

5. Out of Region Clubs

Clubs that register in a border Region but participate in the Arizona Region tournament schedule must sign an Out of Region Agreement. The Agreement is an annual Agreement and must be signed and approved each season.

The teams from Out of Arizona that register with the Arizona Region are eligible to participate in the Arizona Region National Club Qualifier for bids. Teams from Out of Arizona whose memberships are in another Region are not eligible to participate in the Arizona Region National Club Qualifier for bids.

The players on teams from Out of Arizona are eligible to participate with the Arizona Region High Performance program but they must attend tryouts and practices and follow all other requirements of the High Performance program just as if they lived in Arizona. No special participation or tryout accommodations will be made.

D. Certificates of Insurance

Certificates of Insurance generated by the Arizona Region for the clubs are restricted for the use of practices only. Any other use of a Certificate of Insurance generated by the Arizona Region must be approved and sanctioned by the Commissioner. A USA Volleyball Request for Sanction Form must be filled out and approved before the certificate can be used to secure the facility for any other event.

E. Quiet Period

A Quiet Period for recruiting junior girls playing in the high school state tournament has been established to allow the players and coaches involved to focus on their high school tournament and not be distracted by club recruiting. The Quiet Period will run from the last day of the AIA regular school season each year until the time the player's team has been eliminated from the High School State Championships tournament.

No one may contact a player on a high school team that is still involved in the AIA High School state tournament, or the parents/family members of the player, regarding club tryouts or participation. High school coaches who are affiliated with a junior club and whose high school teams are still involved in the state playoffs may not discuss any club participation with their players from the start of the Quiet Period until their team is no longer participating in the tournament.

F. Open House Period

The Open House Period is established prior to both Boys and Girls Club tryouts.

- 1. A 10-day Open House Period has been established prior to the start of Tryouts to allow players to visit and/or be evaluated by different clubs in order for the player to find the club where they most want to tryout and join.
- 2. Prior to the 10-day Open House Period a club may offer open gyms, clinics, camps and info nights without restriction except that they not jeopardize an athlete's school eligibility.
- 3. During the 10-Day Open House Period a club may offer a maximum of 3 separate sessions of no more than 2 hours in duration for each age division in which visitation, evaluation and/or instruction may take place. Camps, clinics and info nights during the 10-day Open House Period would count towards the session limit.
- 4. Private Lessons during the Open House Period Coaches are restricted in the private lessons they may offer during the Open House Period. Coaches may not offer private lessons for 14 and younger athletes during the 14 and younger Open House Period; coaches may not offer private lessons for 15s and older during the 15s and older Open House Period; No private lessons may be

offered during the 3 day overlap of Open House Periods. No private lessons may be offered during the Boys Open House Period.

For each private lesson held by a coach during the Open House Period, the club will be charged \$300 per person per lesson. The fee must be paid to the Arizona Region before the coach will be put on any roster. For an unaffiliated coach that holds private lessons during the restricted Open House Periods, the club that hires them will incur the fine when they are hired by a club.

5. Regarding Clubs that have more than one location: If the club is registered as one club with the Arizona Region, when approaching the Open House policy, the rule still applies that only 3 two-hour sessions may be held during the 10-day period for one age group.

Example: Club ABC is holding open house for their west side 16's, Club ABC on the east side must hold their open house period for the 16's at the same time and date to be counted as one session.

- 6. Prior to tryouts a club MAY NOT:
 - i. Offer (verbal, written or implied) a player a position on a team in their club;
 - ii. Take any commitment fees or down payments holding a spot on any of their teams;
 - iii. Require or infer that a player needs to be in attendance at all of their offered Open House sessions per age group.
 - iv. Allow a player to commit to their club prior to the conclusion of their TRYOUT session.
 - v. Prohibit a player from attending another club's Open House session.
- 7. The 10 Day Open House Period for all ages begins the Wednesday of the week prior to the established Tryout Start Date and ends the Friday immediately preceding the Tryout Start Date, unless otherwise published due to black-out dates.
 - i. If a black out day falls within the 10-day period prior to the established tryouts, the Open House Period will start on the Tuesday of the week prior to the established tryouts date.
 - ii. The black out date is to be free of all club volleyball participation and private lessons so as to participate in the event the black-out is for for example, the Girls State HS Championship day in November.
- 8. Clubs holding tryouts more than 10 days after the Tryout Start Date are not bound by the Open House Period.
- 9. The consequences for violation of Open House rules: 1st offense \$500 fine; 2nd offense sanctioned from participating in the tournaments for one season.

G. Tryouts

- Tryouts Start Dates for Junior Boys Clubs are on or after the second Saturday in August.
- b. Tryout Start Dates for Junior Girls Clubs are as follows:
 - i. 14's and younger team tryouts may begin on or after the first Saturday in November.
 - 15's and older team tryouts may begin on or after the third Saturday in November.

iii. Players enrolled in high school, regardless of age, may only tryout on or after the established tryout dates for the 15's – 18's age categories. Players' age eligible for 14's but enrolled in high school are not permitted to tryout on the dates established for 14's and under unless they are held after the last match of the state high school championships. This is to protect any high school team eligibility of the player. No exceptions allowed.

H. Commitment Period

- i. Because of the 10-Day Open House period where players are allowed to go visit different clubs in order to decide which club to tryout and join, clubs may ask for a player to commit to their club immediately following the tryout session for each age group.
- ii. Once a player has made a commitment to a club and the club has accepted the commitment the player is no longer eligible to tryout at any other club. The player is no longer to be recruited by other clubs and must inform any club that contacts them for recruiting purposes that they have committed to another club.

I. Club Commitment

The Arizona Region and USA Volleyball consider a commitment to a club to be for the entire season as defined above.

- i. The Arizona Region considers a player committed to a junior club when a player or his/her parent signs a club contract and/or pays the initial club fees to its club director or one of its coaches with the intent of joining the club for the current season.
- ii. Players who have committed to a club and then wish to transfer to another club must first request to be released from the club to which they first committed and the release must be verified and approved by the Arizona Region Commissioner before they may begin to practice or play with the club to which they wish to transfer. See Player Release Policy below for further information on changing clubs in the same season.
- iii. All players are released from their club association within the Arizona Region per USA Volleyball the day following the completion of their respective Junior National Championships regardless of whether or not they are attending the Junior National Championships.
- iv. Consequences of violation of Club Commitment Policy
 - a. If the parent/guardian of a player signs a contract with two separate clubs, the parent/guardian must pay the "non-committed club release fees" to the Arizona Region AND the player must sit out the next tournament of the Arizona Region Tournament Schedule in their division.
 - b. If the parent/guardian claims the situation was the result of coercion, both clubs will be investigated by the Ethics and Compliance Committee. If the club(s) is found at fault by the ECC a \$2000 fine will be assessed to the club(s) and the club and all their teams will be suspended until the fine is paid in full to the Arizona Region.

c. For repeat violations, determination of culpability by the ECC will result in an automatic suspension of the violator for a period of one year.

J. Recruiting Guidelines

The intent of the recruiting guidelines is to allow every junior player and/or their parents to participate during the high school season free from any intense recruiting and demands of the club programs. In addition, these guidelines are intended to govern the conduct of club recruiters once a player has committed to a club.

All recruiting offers MUST be within the strict guidelines of the NCAA Rules and Regulations, the Arizona Interscholastic Association (AIA), and this Arizona Region Policies Manual.

Violators of these guidelines would be referred to the Ethics and Compliance Officer and may be censured as follows:

- a. The team that has a player that was recruited illegally may have its Region Tournament results forfeited AND may not be eligible to compete in the Arizona Region Championships for the current season.
- b. The person who conducted the illegal recruitment (Club Director/Coach/Team Representative/Chaperone/etc) may also have their Arizona Region membership revoked and may not be eligible to participate in a USA Volleyball event during the current season. Appeals of disciplinary action may be reviewed under the Arizona Region Due Process.
- c. A junior member or his/her parent/guardian who illegally commits to a club during the season may be subject to sanction by the Arizona Region.

Once a player has committed to a club during the Arizona Region sanctioned season, club directors and coaches from another Arizona Region club SHALL NOT contact that player or their family.

For the purposes of the above, "contact" occurs and a recruiting violation occurs when an Arizona Region-registered club director and/or coach from one Arizona Region-registered club initiates verbal or written contact with a player or their parents from another Arizona Region-registered club with the intent of persuading the player to leave their present club to join another club.

- a. If the player or parent makes the initial contact, a club director or coach may inform the player or parent, without fear of committing a recruiting violation, about their specific program.
- b. It is strongly recommended that all club directors and coaches refrain from making negative comments concerning other clubs or their staff.

If a team has completed its season and is not going to go to any end of year tournaments, the players may be released to attend an end of the year tournament with another club team provided it is legal to pick up players for the tournament to be attended. Any coach, club director or club representative interested in taking a player from another club team to an end of the year tournament with the new club team must FIRST contact the current club director of the player's team to ask permission to talk to the player being recruited.

If the player or player's parent/guardian initiates contact, the Club Representative may respond to inquiries and supply information, provided that they inform the interested player or player's parent/guardian that they must obtain a release from their current club before any further discussion can take place. The current club director is not obligated to permit the coach, club director or club representative to talk to their player or otherwise release the player. The player must be released from the first club in order to practice or compete with the second club at any year-end tournament. Paperwork must be received in the Region office prior to established deadlines for online registration editing.

High Performance Players and Coaches

The High Performance program is a USA Volleyball and Arizona Region representative program and is to be free from club affiliation. During the time the players are training and representing the Arizona Region they are not a member of any club nor are the coaches associated with any club – they are representing the Arizona Region. Therefore, players selected to the USAV or Arizona Region High Performance team(s) are "off limits" for recruiting from the start of the first practice until the completion of the HP Championships tournament or USAV HP participation obligation. Coaches and players are not to discuss club volleyball association with anyone during the time they are participating with the HP team. Anyone recruiting the players or coaches associated with the Arizona Region HP teams will be subject to sanction.

K. Signing Date Rule

A junior player may not make a binding commitment to a team or club until the respective commitment date of the Arizona Region club season as defined above. Any written, verbal or implied commitment made prior to the published tryout date is non-binding.

In no event may a junior player make a binding commitment to a team or club for more than one club season (i.e., the upcoming club season) as defined above. Any agreements, including postdated agreements, are non-binding; this includes the upcoming or current club season and any subsequent club seasons that were included as part of the commitment. USA Volleyball membership is an annual membership. All parties are released from their club affiliations on the last day of their respective Junior National Championships.

- a. A player and his/her parent on his/her behalf that signs ANY letter of commitment, membership form or any similar document and/or pays any commitment fees or initial club membership fees prior to the Arizona Region published tryout date is subject to suspension for the entire season and a \$500 fine.
- b. Any club representative who asks a player or his/her parent to sign or collect such fees before such date is subject to suspension for the entire season.
- c. The team with a player and parent on his/her behalf who signed such a document before such dates may be subject to suspension for the entire season.

L. Approved Contact of a Junior Age Player

a. Female Players

Female players and/or their parents may be contacted via oral/written communication by an individual such as a coach, club representative, parent other than their own, or another player from the recruiting club at any time between the last

day of Girls Junior National Championships and the date the player commits to a club by registering with that club EXCEPT eight hours prior to and for the duration of a school volleyball event such as a practice, match or tournament. Those players participating on the Arizona Region High Performance team(s) are considered "off limits" from the start of the first practice until the conclusion of the High Performance Championships.

b. Male Players

Male players and/or their parents may be contacted via oral/written communication by an individual such as a coach, club representative, parent other than their own or another player from the recruiting club from the close of the Boys Junior National Championships until they have committed to a club for the new season. Those players participating on the Arizona Region High Performance team(s) are considered "off limits" from the start of the first practice until the conclusion of the High Performance Championships.

M. Flyers and/or brochures

Flyers and/or brochures:

- May be placed on a table at school volleyball matches provided the school has given permission to place them there - except at a HS State Tournament match during the Quiet Period.
- May be given to a coach of a school team to hand out to the players on their team
 if they are willing to do so except at a HS State tournament match during the
 Quiet Period.
- May be handed to specific players only after the match/practice/tournament has completed – except at a HS State tournament match during the Quiet Period
- May be mailed (including electronic mail) to former players of the club.
- May be included in general media advertising (e.g. newspapers).

N. Preseason Open Gyms, Camps and Clinics

Open gyms, camps and skills clinics may be held prior to the established tryout dates provided:

- NO high school player on any level high school team (freshmen, JV and Varsity)
 participates until after their team has completed their season and they will not be
 participating with any other volleyball team from their school either in practice or
 during the championship playoffs.
- There is no written or implied requirement to attend the open gyms/camps/clinics in order to make a team in the club offering the event,
- If the Arizona Region Certificate of Insurance is used to secure the facility for the camp and/or skills clinic the club will secure sanctioning of the event prior to making public the event and will follow all sanction requirements.
- Open gyms will NOT be sanctioned by the Arizona Region as proof of membership cannot be verified.
- Open gyms, camps and clinics held during the Open House Period will count toward the limited number of sessions per age group and duration of sessions allowed.

O. Junior Player Eligibility

A player in the Arizona Region must be a registered member of the Arizona Region of USA Volleyball for the current season and have a birth certificate on file with the Region. The player must meet the age and gender eligibility requirements of the team they are being considered for except as provided for in Age Waivers for Junior Players below.

The Arizona Region will follow the USAV Gender Competition Guidelines regarding player eligibility of athletes identifying as a different gender than what they were born.

P. Coach Eligibility

A coach in the Arizona Region must meet the following requirements to be eligible to coach a junior team in the Arizona Region:

- 1. Be a registered member of the Arizona Region of USA Volleyball for the current season;
- 2. Submit and pass a background screen by the USA Volleyball approved vendor every two consecutive seasons;
- 3. Be SafeSport trained and current in that certification as required by the USOC;
- 4. Be IMPACT certified as a minimum before the first tournament each season;
- 5. Keep the coach's certification current by attending approved continuing education courses or advance to a CAP course a minimum of every 3 years CAP certification is good for 4 years.

A Head Coach must be a minimum of 18 years old and a minimum of 5 years older than the age of the team they are coaching.

An Assistant Coach must be a minimum of 16 years old and a minimum of 2 years older than the age of the team he/she is coaching. If the Assistant Coach is under 18 years old he/she must always be accompanied by a certified, registered Head Coach and never be left alone and in charge of the team they are coaching. An Assistant Coach who turns 18 during the season must submit and pass a background screen by the USAV Volleyball approved vendor within 30 days of turning 18 years old.

It is the Club Director's responsibility to ensure all the coaches in the club meet the criteria above prior to the first tournament.

Q. Team Eligibility

All members of a team must be registered with the Arizona Region of USA Volleyball for the current season in order for the team to be eligible to compete. All players assigned to the team must meet the age eligibility requirements for the age level of the team except as provided for in Age Waivers for Junior Players Policy. All coaches must meet the coach's eligibility requirements.

Any club allowing players or coaches that are not on the team roster to participate are subject to fines and/or sanction by the Ethics & Compliance Officer.

R. Age Waivers for Junior Players

The Arizona Region may grant an age waiver for junior players to play in a lower age division in certain instances. The intent of the age waiver is for players in rural areas that have limited club/teams in which to play and/or players with summer birthdays that are in the grade below what their birth date would require them to play. The waiver requires the written approval of the Arizona Region Registrar prior to the player being assured a place on the lower age team.

These waivers will be valid only within the Arizona Region. Age waivers are **NOT VALID** at the national level. No age waiver requests will be granted for players on an Open Division or other division team that is going to travel. A maximum of two players with an age wavier are allowed on any one team. Age waivers are not allowed at National Qualifiers, Bid Tournaments or other interregional tournaments. Other regions are not obligated to allow the participation of waivered players. Contact the individual

Tournament Director to check on their eligibility requirements **PRIOR** to entering the tournament.

For an age waiver request to be considered:

- The Age Waiver Request Form must be submitted prior to the formal placement of the player on the lower age team.
- The team the player is requesting to play on must be an Arizona Region Club Division or Championship Division team that is not going to any National Qualifier or interregional tournament.
- The player must have a summer birthday (June Aug) and be in the grade of the oldest players that are age eligible for that team classification. For players outside the Phoenix metro and Tucson metro areas the birth date of the player may be allowed to fall during the school year.
- Consideration of an age waiver will be on a case by case basis.
- There is no guarantee an age waiver will be granted for anyone. If the age waiver request is denied, the team may be required to play in an older age group to accommodate the older player.

7/11

S. Adding Players to an Existing Team

A new player may be added to any team's roster at any time provided the player has never been registered with another Arizona Region-registered club/team for that season. Online registration must be completed and registration fees must be submitted to the Arizona Region office BEFORE the player may participate in any practice or tournament. A player that has a Player Release form from another club may be added to an existing team if all eligibility requirements have been met.

To be eligible to participate in the Region Championships with the team, the new player must have participated in at least one Arizona Region power tournament with the team prior to the Region Championships.

Any coach or club found illegally adding players to a roster will be referred to the Ethics and Compliance Officer and may be subject, but not limited, to fines, suspension and/or other sanctions of the club director, coach and/or player(s) involved as determined by Section II of the USAV Disciplinary Policy.

T. Borrowing a Player within a Club

A team may borrow a player from another team within the same club provided **ALL** of the following apply:

- The team borrowing the player is in the same age group or older as the team the borrowed player is a member of.
- The team borrowing the player is a higher ranked team than the team of which the borrowed player is a member.
- A Club or Championship Division team may not borrow an Open Division player. A Club Division team may not borrow a Championship Division player.
- The player may be borrowed only one time during the season.
- The player being borrowed may only play on one team and in one tournament wave per tournament date.
- The Arizona Region Office is notified of the player being borrowed in writing a minimum of 48 hours prior to the tournament. This is to notify the Site Director of the situation involving the borrowed player.

Any subsequent play on the borrowing team by the borrowed player will constitute
a transfer and that player permanently changing rosters. Once the roster change
has been made, the former team may not borrow the player.

U. Changing Teams within the Same Club

During the Arizona Region tournament season, a player may transfer from one team to another (provided that the player is participating on a team in their age group or above) within the same club. The club must notify the Arizona Region Office of any transfers within their club in writing. A player may not transfer back or be borrowed by the previous team once transferred.

V. Player Release Policy

The Arizona Region and USA Volleyball consider a player committed to a club from the date they sign a contract with the club and/or pay fees to the club with the intent of holding a position or joining the club until the last day of the Jr National Championships (JNC) regardless of whether they are playing in the JNC tournament or not. The player release process must be completed in order to protect the eligibility of the players and the integrity of the clubs and teams they represent.

A club representative from one club may not talk to a player from another club about leaving their current club until after the JNC tournaments are over. A club representative is defined as any member of a club that is speaking to another person about their club (players, coaches, parents, club directors, trainers, etc.) It does not matter what the reason for leaving the club is, the player must have a release from their current club before they can talk to another club about playing with them during the current season. Speaking to a player about joining their club for an end of season tournament before they have a release is a recruiting violation and both parties are subject to sanction.

This policy applies to all events, including tryouts for summer play, friendship tournaments and AAU tournaments, during the USAV sanctioned season where the clubs are USAV registered clubs. This does not apply to advertisement of camps and clinics through the handing out of summer camp/clinic flyers.

A player will not be released to a club from another Region or accepted from a club from another Region for the purpose of participating in the Junior National Championships. Exceptions will be considered on a case by case basis only and with consideration of the USAV eligibility rules and permanent relocation of the player the main factors.

A club that allows a player from another club to participate with them in practice or tournaments before they have a release from their current club is subject to sanction. A player that practices or participates with another club without a release from their club is subject to sanction.

A club is not obligated to release a player if a request is received, even if all fees are paid and the team is not going to play after the Region Championships. If a player is released to another club they may not be released to a third club or rejoin the first club in the same season.

There are 2 main reasons that the Region may deny a player release to join another club. These have to do with eligibility of the player to join the team.

1. All players on the roster of a team that qualifies for the JNC are frozen to that roster. They may not participate with another team in their club or a team from

- another club in an attempt to qualify or participate in the JNC. This is the Frozen Roster Rule.
- 2. A player that is on a roster of a team that attempted to qualify with one club may not be released to join a team from another club that has qualified for the JNC. The player may be added to a team within their own club that has qualified, if their team did not qualify, but may not be released to join another club team that has qualified. This could be called the All-Star team rule.

W. USAV Frozen Roster Rule

Once a team has qualified in a National Qualifying Event, all players listed on the roster at the time of qualification are frozen to that team roster – regardless whether they played in the event or not. Players on a frozen roster may not be added to another team roster to attempt to qualify or play in the Junior National Championships. Players from another team in their club may be added to the qualified team's roster as long as they have not participated in a qualifying event or qualified with another team.

CHAPTER VI – OFFICIALS DIVISION POLICIES

See Official's Division Handbook

CHAPTER VII – GLOSSARY OF TERMS

- AIA Arizona Interscholastic Association the governing body of high school sports in the state of Arizona. They are a member of the National Federation of High Schools Sports (NFHS) an association of high school sports organizations across the country.
- Bid Tournament National qualifying tournament for boys teams to qualify for the Open Division or USA Division of the Boys Junior National Championships.
- Club Representative Any person acting on behalf of a specific club or at the request of a club director or coach from a specific club is a club representative. A club director, coach, parent, current or former player, speaking to a prospective club player in an attempt to lure them to the club is considered a club representative. A club director is the designated Club Representative when it comes to communication with the Arizona Region.
- ECC Ethics and Compliance Committee. The ECC will confer with the ECO when a complaint has been received and will convene when a disciplinary hearing is requested by an accused to be heard on a complaint.
- ECO Ethics and Compliance Officer.
- Frozen Roster A frozen roster is the roster of a team that has qualified for the Jr National Championships at a girls' national qualifier or boys bid tournament that was submitted for entry and confirmed at the time of qualifying. Players may be added to the frozen roster but the players that were on the roster at the time of qualification are frozen to it and may not be transferred to another team in the same club to help the other team qualify or may not be released to another club to play with a team in the Junior National Championship in the same season.

- JNC Junior National Championships. The USA Volleyball National Championships for either Junior Girls (GJNC) or Junior Boys (BJNC).
- National Qualifier National qualifying tournament for girls teams to qualify for the Girls Junior National Championships. There are eleven National Qualifiers which are governed by USA Volleyball. These tournaments are held in specific areas of the country as to qualify teams from various Regions without having to travel too far. These tournaments qualify teams in each of the following Divisions: Open Division, USA Division and American Division.
- National Club Qualifier (AZ NCQ) A tournament used by the Arizona Region to qualify their teams to the National and American Divisions of the Girls Junior National Championships (GJNC). Each Region is awarded a specific number of bids to the National and American Divisions of the Girls JNC which is determined by the number of players registered in specific age categories in their region the previous season. The Arizona Region is awarded one bid in the National Division and one bid in the American Division for each age group of the Girls JNC. The Arizona Region holds a separate tournament for those teams interested in attending the Girls JNC. Some Regions use their Region Championships to award their bids.
- NCAA National Collegiate Athletic Association the national governing body of collegiate sports organizations.
- Open Gym An event where a coach or other responsible party will set up the gym for volleyball and allow players to come in and play. There may be a participation fee to help pay for the facility. There should not be instruction, drills or evaluation on the part of the coach or other responsible party. If there is instruction, drills or evaluation on the part of the coach or other responsible party it would be considered a camp, clinic or tryout.
- Open House Period an established 10 day period before a specific age group tryout start date for junior girls teams. During the 10 day period a club may offer no more than 3 sessions of no longer than 2 hours in duration for each age group. At the Open House Session a player may be required to go through skills and physical testing for evaluation by the club. NO private lessons are allowed during the Open House Period. Coaches and their clubs that allow/provide private lessons during the Open House Period are subject to sanction.
- Quiet Period a Quiet Period for recruiting junior girls playing in the high school state tournament has been established to allow the girls involved to focus on their high school tournament and not be distracted by club recruiting.
- Team Camp Area the area designated by each team at a tournament where they leave their bags and food while they are participating on the court and where the team sits and relaxes during the time they are not playing.
- Team Representative The responsible party for adult registered teams. Since the large majority of adult clubs are made up of one team, the Team Representative is usually the Club Director. The term may also be applied in juniors normally as parent who is designated the team parent.
- Tryout Start Date the official start date that tryouts may begin for junior boys' and junior girls' teams. This is the first day that a player can commit to a club for the season.

USA Volleyball – Recognized by the US Olympic Committee and the FIVB (Federation of International Volleyball) as the National Governing Body (NGB) of Beach, Indoor and Sitting volleyball disciplines in the United States. Membership with USA Volleyball is through one of forty Regional Volleyball Associations (RVA). The Arizona Region is one of those forty regions.